
 

CITY OF NORTH POLE 
Regular Meeting August 3, 2020 

North Pole Council Chambers 
125 Snowman Lane, North Pole, Alaska 

www.northpolealaska.com 
 
 
 

Monday, August 3, 2020  
Committee of the Whole: 6:30 p.m. 

Regular City Council Meeting: 7:00 p.m. 
 
 

MAYOR CITY CLERK 
Michael Welch 
488-8584 

 
488-8583 

 
COUNCIL MEMBERS 
Perry Walley – Mayor Pro Tem 

 
 

347-0135 
Santa Claus – Deputy Mayor Pro Tem 388-3836 
Aino Welch – Alt. Deputy Mayor Pro Tem 488-5834 
DeJohn Cromer 347-2808 
David Skipps 750-5106 
Thomas McGhee 455-0010 

 

1. Call to Order/Roll Call 

 

2. Pledge of Allegiance to the US Flag  

3. Invocation  

4. Approval of the Agenda  

5. Approval of the Minutes 

 

 

 

 

 

 

a. July 20, 2020 
 

6. Communications from the Mayor 
 

7. Council Member Questions of the Mayor 
 

8. Communications from Department Heads, Borough Representative and the City Clerk 

9. Ongoing Projects Report 

10. Citizens Comments (Limited to five (5) minutes per Citizen) 

 

 

http://www.northpolealaska.com/


11. Old Business: 
a. Ordinance 20 – 14 An Ordinance of the City of North Pole, Alaska to Amend the 2019 Water 

Utility Operating Budget 
b. Ordinance 20 – 15 An Ordinance of the City of North Pole, Alaska Amending Title 2, Chapter 

2.36 Personnel Code, Section. 470 Pay 
c. Ordinance 20 – 16 An Ordinance of the City of North Pole, Alaska to Oppose Passage of 

Legislation that Would Restrict Individual Rights Protected by the Second Amendment of the 
United States Constitution and Declaring the City of North Pole a Second Amendment 
Sanctuary  

  
 

12. New Business: 
a. Ordinance 20 – 17 An Ordinance of the City of North Pole, Alaska Amending Title 2, Chapter 

2.36 Personnel Code, Section. 470 Pay 
b. Ordinance 20 – 18  An Ordinance of the City of North Pole, Alaska to Amend 2020 Operating 

Budget and Other Funds 
c. Ordinance 20 – 19 An Ordinance to Appropriate Cares Act Funds for City of North Pole, 

Healthcare, Businesses/Non-Profits and Individuals/Families 
 

13. Council Comments 
 

14. Adjournment 
 
Detailed information and copies of agenda documents may be obtained at the Office of the City Clerk, 
125 Snowman Lane or on the City website www.northpolealaska.com .  Notice of Council Action is 
available at City Hall and on the City website following the meeting. 
 

How to Offer Public Testimony at Council Meetings 
 

In response to the COVID-19 pandemic and local/state regulations requiring residents to stay at home, 
practice social distancing, and limit gatherings, the City of North Pole has created a process for citizens 
to stay connected with the Council regarding agenda items. 
 
Written testimony is encouraged.  You may submit your comments by calling the Clerk’s Office at 
488-8583 or by sending an email to arhoades@northpolealaska.org prior to 1:00 p.m. the day of the 
meeting.  Please indicate which agenda item you are providing written testimony for.  Examples: 
Ordinance or Resolution number, agenda item#, or description of subject. 
 
To sign-up for telephonic testimony call the Clerk’s Office at 488-8583 or 
email arhoades@northpolealaska.org prior to 1:00 p.m. the day of the meeting.  Please indicate that you 
wished to be called, for what item you will provide testimony on, and what number you can be reached 
at. 
 
Council Meetings are aired live via audio streaming from the City’s website 
at https://www.northpolealaska.com/citycouncil/page/council-meeting-audio-stream. 
 
Inquiries concerning ADA compliance or accommodations should be directed to the City Clerk. 

http://www.northpolealaska.com/
mailto:arhoades@northpolealaska.org
mailto:arhoades@northpolealaska.org
https://www.northpolealaska.com/citycouncil/page/council-meeting-audio-stream


 

1 
City of North Pole NOT A VERBATIM TRANSCRIPT July 20, 2020 
Regular Meeting Minutes 
 

NORTH POLE CITY COUNCIL 
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES, July 20, 2020 
NORTH POLE CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

125 SNOWMAN LANE, NORTH POLE, ALASKA 
 
 
Mayor Welch called the regular City Council meeting of Monday, July 20, 2020 to order at 7:00 
p.m. with the following Council Members in attendance: 
 
Council Members Present: Santa Claus 
    Thomas McGhee 
    David Skipps 

Aino Welch 
DeJohn Cromer – Attending Via Zoom 
Perry Walley 
Mayor Welch 

 
Absent:      
 
Excused: 
       
Also Present:   William Butler, Director of City Services 
    Tricia Fogarty, Chief Financial Officer  

Steve Dutra, Police Chief 
Aaron M. Rhoades, Temporary City Clerk/HR Manager 
Geoff Coon, Fire Chief 

 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO THE FLAG 
Mayor Welch asked everyone to join him in the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 

INVOCATION 
The Invocation was given by City Council Member Mrs. Welch. 
 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
Mr. Walley moved to approve the agenda of July 20, 2020. 
 

Seconded by Mrs. Welch. 
 

Discussion 
Mr. Walley moved to consent the following items:  
 

Old Business: 
None 

 



 

2 
City of North Pole NOT A VERBATIM TRANSCRIPT July 20, 2020 
Regular Meeting Minutes 
 

 
New Business: 

 
a. Request for Lateral Hire to North Pole Police Department  
b. Ordinance 20-14 An Ordinance of the City of North Pole, Alaska to Amend the 2019 Water 
Utility Operating Budget  
e. Request to Approve the Recommendation to Authorize Hubbard Excavation to do $23,704.00 
of Road Patch Work. 

 
 

Seconded by Mrs. Welch 
 

Discussion 
None 
 

On the amendment. 
 

PASSED 
YES: 7 – Mr. McGhee, Mr. Skipps, Mr. Claus, Mrs. Welch, Mr. Cromer, Mr. Walley Mayor 
Welch 
NO: 0   
ABSTAIN:  
Mayor Welch declared the MOTION CARRIED 
 

On the Agenda as amended. 
 

Discussion 
None  
 

PASSED 
YES: 7 – Mr. McGhee, Mr. Skipps, Mr. Claus, Mrs. Welch, Mr. Cromer, Mr. Walley Mayor 
Welch 
NO: 0   
ABSTAIN:  
Mayor Welch declared the MOTION CARRIED 
 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
Minutes were lost due to technology failure and power outage. Working on recovery 
 
Discussion 
None 

 
 

COMMUNICATIONS FROM THE MAYOR  
 

a. July 7, 2020 Met with Secretary of the USAF, Dr. Barbara Barrett with U.S. Senators Sullivan and 
Murkowski, and Lt. Gen Krumm. 



 

3 
City of North Pole NOT A VERBATIM TRANSCRIPT July 20, 2020 
Regular Meeting Minutes 
 

b. July 8, 2020 Change of Command at EAFB 354th LRS with outgoing Commander Lt. Col. Derick 
Williamson and incoming Commander Major Adam Starkey. 

c. July 14, 2020 Energy for Alaska Task Force Zoom meeting. 
d. July 15, 2020 Three Mayors Zoom Meeting 
e. July 15, 2020 Fast Planning Policy Meeting 
f. July 17, 2020 FNSB Mayor Bryce Ward Discussion about CARES Act MOU. 
g. July 17 KSH Met with Gary Hutcheson about Mayor’s response to recommendations to increase 

accounting staff. Will have response ready no later than July 22, 2020. 
h. July 18, 2020 Saturday KJNP Over the Coffee Cup Call-In 0810-0835 
i. July 18, 2020 Update on Status of City Hall Screens and Cares Act  

 
COUNCIL MEMBER QUESTIONS OF THE MAYOR    
 
 
 
Mr. Walley– Would the screens be part of the Covid – 19 Grant? 

Mayor Welch – Yes it will.  
Mrs. Welch – What happened to the idea of the screen hanging down in the middle? 

Mayor Welch – There were safety issues with the potential of people hitting their heads. 
Mr. Walley – What about the zoom camera? 

Mayor Welch – Yes we discussed two cameras and the cost was around $12,000 dollars. 
The 85 inch screen may not have the resolution to see it all the way on the back wall. 

 
COMMUNICATIONS FROM DEPARTMENT HEADS, BOROUGH 
REPRESENTATIVE AND THE CITY CLERK 
 

 
 Building Department, Bill Butler 
• Two residential building permits issued.  
• One permit application for a 4-plex submitted and anticipate permit application for a 3-plex.  
• Tanks are being moved from Fairbanks to the North Pole IGU site.  
 
Public Works  
• Public Works activities continue to focus on landscaping efforts.  
• Request to fund asphalt patching contract is on tonight’s agenda.  
 
Utility Department  
• Utility Department is engaged in routine summer maintenance—lift station cleaning, exercising 
valves, supporting Moose Creek project activities.  
 
North Pole Expansion Project  
• Of the 479 possible connections in Zones 3 & 4, 436 (91%) have applied for service.  
• 200 (46%) of new account applications’ services have been installed in Zones 3 & 4.  
 
Moose Creek Water System Expansion Project.  
•    High groundwater in Moose Creek is slowly dropping.  
• Areas with deep excavations are still a problem when in PFAS contaminated area.  



 

4 
City of North Pole NOT A VERBATIM TRANSCRIPT July 20, 2020 
Regular Meeting Minutes 
 

• Requesting EPA & DEC to approve alternative means to dispose of de-watering water.  
• Water tank is erected.  
• Pump house is roofed and interior work has begun.  
• Installing water mains in the northern section of Moose Creek  
• DNR Critical Water Management public meeting was held on July 14.  
• 16 Moose creek property owners attended.  

 
City Services Office Space  
• Released request for proposals on July 10.  
• Bid submission date currently set of August 3. 
 
Finance, Tricia Fogarty  

• AML Investment Fund has declined considerably in the last several months 
• Received a notice form insurance up our collateral accounts to $30,000 
• Need direction on the Clerk Position. 1 application 

 
Fire Department, Deputy Chief Heineken  

• No report. 
• Truck should be here late August. 

 
Police Department, Chief Dutra   

• Incredible amount of support still pouring in thanking our officers for the work they do.  One 
officer stopped 3 times in one hour by motorists.  Officers from other jurisdictions putting in 
applications based on our Facebook. 

• Tent pitching - complaints 

• June Stats – 

• Police Magazine has asked to do an article on our department 

• Hiring still down 3 positions causing enormous issues due to max vacation hours for several 

• Vehicle – cost reduction proposals coming 

• VFW / AACOP Raffle for a rifle – see me if you are interested 

 

Borough Representative 
None 
 
City Clerk  

• AML Conference VIA Zoom Welch and Claus 
• Election issues. If City is closed where will Citizen vote? 
• Open Meetings Act requires 5 Days Notice. New Deadline for Agenda Items Tuesday. 



 

5 
City of North Pole NOT A VERBATIM TRANSCRIPT July 20, 2020 
Regular Meeting Minutes 
 

o A thorough discussion followed about what possible alternatives could work for 
voting. 

 

ONGOING PROJECTS 
•  
• Mayor Welch discussed the Economic Development Commission. 

o Asking if anybody will serve on this Commission, Tuesday’s beginning at 2:30 
p.m. 

o Mrs. Welch can cover during the summer, for the next three months. 
 

CITIZEN’S COMMENTS – (Limited to Five (5) minutes per Citizen) 
None 
 

OLD BUSINESS 
None 
 
NEW BUISNESS 

• c. Ordinance 20-15 An Ordinance of the City of North Pole, Alaska Amending Title 2, Chapter 
2.36 Personnel Code, Section. 470 Pay  

• d. Ordinance 20-16 An Ordinance of the City of North Pole, Alaska to Oppose Passage of 
Legislation that Would Restrict Individual Rights Protected by the Second Amendment of the 
United States Constitution and Declaring the City of North Pole a Second Amendment 
Sanctuary  

 
 MOTION TO INTRODUCE ORDINANCE 20-15, AN ORDINANCE OF THE NORTH 
POLE CITY COUNCIL AMENDING TITLE 2, CHAPTER 2.36 PERSONNEL CODE, 
SECTION. 470 PAY 
 
Mr. McGhee moved to Postpone till August 3, 2020. 

 

Seconded by Mrs. Welch. 
 
Discussion 

• Discussion was held regarding the request to approve Ordinance 20-15. 
 
A ROLL CALL VOTE WAS TAKEN ON THE MOTION TO INTRODUCE ORDINANCE 20-
15, AN ORDINANCE OF THE NORTH POLE CITY COUNCIL AMENDING TITLE 2, 
CHAPTER 2.36 PERSONNEL CODE, SECTION. 470 PAY: 

 

YES: 7 – Mr. McGhee, Mr. Skipps, Mr. Walley, Mr. Claus, Mrs. Welch, Mr. 
Cromer, Mayor Welch 
NO: 0   
ABSTAIN:  
Mayor Welch declared the MOTION CARRIED 



 

6 
City of North Pole NOT A VERBATIM TRANSCRIPT July 20, 2020 
Regular Meeting Minutes 
 

 
 

MOTION TO INTRODUCE ORDINANCE 20-16, AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF 
NORTH POLE, ALASKA TO OPPOSE PASSAGE OF LEGISLATION THAT WOULD 
RESTRICT INDIVIDUAL RIGHTS PROTECTED BY THE SECOND AMENDMENT OF THE 
UNITED STATES CONSTITUTION AND DECLARING THE CITY OF NORTH POLE A 
SECOND AMENDMENT SANCTUARY  
 
Mr. McGhee moved to Approve Ordinance 20-16. 

 

Seconded by Mrs. Welch. 
 
Discussion 
 

• Discussion was held regarding the request to approve Ordinance 20-16. 
 

A ROLL CALL VOTE WAS TAKEN ON THE MOTION TO INTRODUCE ORDINANCE 20-
16, AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF NORTH POLE, ALASKA TO OPPOSE PASSAGE 
OF LEGISLATION THAT WOULD RESTRICT INDIVIDUAL RIGHTS PROTECTED BY 
THE SECOND AMENDMENT OF THE UNITED STATES CONSTITUTION AND 
DECLARING THE CITY OF NORTH POLE A SECOND AMENDMENT SANCTUARY  

 

YES: 7 – Mr. McGhee, Mr. Skipps, Mr. Walley, Mrs. Welch,  Mayor Welch 
NO: 0 - Mr. Claus, Mr. Cromer  
ABSTAIN:  

Mayor Welch declared the MOTION CARRIED 
 
Mr. McGhee moved to adjourn the meeting at 8:24 p.m. 
 

Seconded by Mrs. Welch 
 

The regular meeting of Monday, July 20, 2020 adjourned at 8:24 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
              

Michael W. Welch, Mayor 
 

ATTEST: 
 
       
Aaron M. Rhoades, City Clerk 



Sponsored by: Mayor Michael W. Welch 
Introduced: July 20, 2020 

 

 

  CITY OF NORTH POLE 1 
ORDINANCE 20-14 2 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF NORTH POLE, ALASKA TO 3 
AMEND THE 2019 WATER UTILITY OPERATING BUDGET 4 

 5 
WHEREAS, changes to the public services practices and policies is a continually changing 6 
requirement; and, 7 
 8 
WHEREAS, the City of North Pole budget should be amended to conform to the requirements 9 
41of the City; and, 10 
 11 
WHEREAS, adjustment in the budget are necessary to remain compliant with council approved 12 
authorizations and budget management rules, and 13 
 14 
WHEREAS, fiscal notes are the method prescribed by the code to amend a budget; and, 15 
 16 
WHEREAS, fiscal notes have been reviewed by the Accountant and Mayor for accuracy and 17 
will be recorded as amendments to the budget upon approval,  18 
 19 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of North Pole that it 20 
approves changes as listed in the fiscal notes attached to this ordinance for the purpose managing 21 
the City budget.  22 
 23 
Section 1. This ordinance is of a general nature and shall not be codified. 24 
 25 
Section. Effective date. 26 
This ordinance shall become effective immediately upon passage. 27 
  28 
Advanced by a duly constituted quorum of the North Pole City Council this 20th day of July, 29 
2020.  30 
 31 
 32 
        _____________________________ 33 

        Michael W. Welch, Mayor 34 
ATTEST: 35 
 36 
 37 
________________________________ 38 
Aaron Rhodes, Acting North Pole City Clerk 39 
 40 
 41 PASSED/FAILED 

Yes:  
No:  
Absent:  
 



      City of North Pole, Alaska 

 Fiscal Note Year: 

Accompanying Ordinance/Resolution: 

Originator / sponsor: 

Date:      

Does the Ordinance or Resolution have a fiscal impact? yes no 

FUND Account Description Account # Debit Credit 

Summary: (Brief description of proposed alterations as defined by accompanying 
ordinance or resolution.  Where did the money come from and how will it be used). 

Prepared By:________________________________Date:__________________ 

Finance Approval: ___________________________Date:__________________ 

NOTE- Fiscal notes attached to an ordinance are considered amendments to the budget and do 
not require an additional approval for insertion into the budget document.  

bbutler
Line

bbutler
Line

bbutler
Line

bbutler
Line

bbutler
Line

bbutler
Line

bbutler
Line



























Sponsored by: Councilman McGhee 
Introduced: July 20, 2020 

 

 

   1 
 2 

CITY OF NORTH POLE 3 
ORDINANCE 20-15 4 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF NORTH POLE, ALASKA 5 
AMENDING TITLE 2, CHAPTER 2.36 PERSONNEL CODE, SECTION. 6 

470 PAY 7 
 8 
WHEREAS, changes to the North Pole Municipal Code is a continually changing requirement; 9 
and  10 
 11 
WHEREAS, the City of North Pole Municipal Code should be amended to conform to the 12 
requirements of the City and to clarify areas.  13 
 14 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of North Pole:  15 
 16 
Section 1. This ordinance is of a general and permanent nature and shall be codified.  17 
 18 
Section 2. Amend Title 2, Personnel Code, Pay is hereby amended in the North Pole Code of 19 
Ordinances as follows:  20 
 21 
 2. 36.470 Pay.  22 

See attached revised Unified Pay Scale. 23 
 24 
Section 3. Effective Date. This ordinance shall become effective at 5:00pm on the first city day 25 
of the pay period following adoption.  26 
 27 
Advanced by a duly constituted quorum of the North Pole City Council this 20th day of July, 28 
2020.  29 
 30 
 31 
        _____________________________ 32 

        Michael W. Welch, Mayor 33 
ATTEST: 34 
 35 
 36 
________________________________ 37 
Aaron Rhoades, Acting North Pole City Clerk 38 
 39 
 40 PASSED/FAILED 

Yes:  
No:  
Absent:  
 



Sponsored by: Councilman Thomas McGhee 
Introduced and Advanced: July 20, 2020 

Approved : August 3, 2020 
 

 

  CITY OF NORTH POLE 1 
ORDINANCE 20-16 2 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF NORTH POLE, ALASKA TO 3 
OPPOSE PASAGE OF LEGISLATION THAT WOULD RESTRICT 4 

INDIVIDUAL RIGHTS PROTECTED BY THE SECOND AMENDMENT 5 
OF THE UNITED STATES CONSTITUTION AND DECLARING THE 6 

CITY OF NORTH POLE A SECOND AMENDMENT SANCTUARY 7 
 8 
 9 
 WHEREAS, the Second Amendment to the Constitution of the United States of America states: "A 10 
well-regulated Militia being necessary to the security of a free State, the right of the people to keep 11 
and bear arms shall not be infringed"; and  12 
 13 
 WHEREAS, Article 1, Section 19 of the Constitution of the State of Alaska states: “A well-14 
regulated militia being necessary to the security of a free state, the right of the people to keep and 15 
bear arms shall not be infringed. The individual’s right to keep and bear arms shall not be denied or 16 
infringed by the State or a political subdivision of the State”; and 17 
 18 
 WHEREAS, in addition to state constitutional protections, the right of the people to keep and bear 19 
arms is further protected from infringement by state and local governments under the Ninth, Tenth, 20 
and Fourteenth Amendments to the Constitution of the United States of America; and 21 
 22 
 WHEREAS, the United States Supreme Court in McDonald v. City of Chicago affirmed that the 23 
Second Amendment to the U.S. Constitution applies to the states through the Due Process Clause of 24 
the Fourteenth Amendment of U.S. Constitution; and 25 
 26 
 27 
 WHEREAS, the residents of the City Of North Pole derive economic benefit from all safe forms of 28 
firearms recreation, hunting, and shooting conducted within the State using all types of firearms 29 
allowable under the U.S. and Alaska Constitutions; and 30 
 31 
WHEREAS, the Alaska State Legislature passed HB 69 in 2013, signed into law by the Governor on 32 
September 10, 2013, an act prohibiting state and municipal agencies from using assets to implement 33 
or aid in the implementation federal laws or regulations that are applied to infringe on a person’s 34 
right to bear arms; and  35 
 36 
WHEREAS, AS 44.99.040 prohibits the use of local funds to implement or aide in the 37 
implementation of a federal law that infringe on a person’s right to keep and bear arms or deny a 38 
person’s due process rights; and  39 
 40 
WHEREAS, the City Council wishes to express opposition to any law that would unconstitutionally 41 
restrict the rights under the Second Amendment of the U.S. Constitution and under the Alaska 42 
Constitution of the citizens of The City Of North Pole to keep and bear arms; and  43 
 44 
WHEREAS, the City Council wishes to express its deep commitment to the rights of citizens of the 45 
City Of North Pole to keep and bear arms; and  46 
 47 
WHEREAS, the City Council wishes to express its intent to stand as a sanctuary for Second 48 
Amendment rights and to oppose, within the limits of the Constitutions of the United States and the 49 



Sponsored by: Councilman Thomas McGhee 
Introduced and Advanced: July 20, 2020 

Approved : August 3, 2020 
 

 

State of Alaska, any efforts to unconstitutionally restrict such rights, and to use such legal means at 1 
its disposal to protect the rights of the citizens to keep and bear arms; 2 
 3 
WHEREAS, changes to the public services practices and policies is a continually changing 4 
requirement; and, 5 
 6 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY OF NORTH POLE:  7 
 8 
SECTION 1. That this is an uncodified ordinance.  9 
 10 
SECTION 2. That the City Council opposes the enactment of any legislation that would infringe 11 
upon the right of its law-abiding citizens to keep and bear arms and consider such laws to be 12 
unconstitutional.  13 
 14 
SECTION 3. That the City Council hereby expresses its intent to uphold the Second Amendment 15 
rights of the law-abiding citizens of the City of North Pole and that public funds, resources, 16 
employees, buildings or offices not be used to restrict Second Amendment rights or to aid or assist in 17 
the enforcement of the unnecessary and unconstitutional restriction of the rights under the Second 18 
Amendment of the citizens of the City Of North Pole to keep and bear arms.  19 
 20 
SECTION 4. That the City Council hereby declares the City Of North Pole a “Second Amendment 21 
Sanctuary”.  22 
 23 
SECTION 5. This ordinance shall become effective immediately upon passage. 24 
  25 
Advanced by a duly constituted quorum of the North Pole City Council this 20th day of July, 26 
2020.  27 
 28 
 29 
        _____________________________ 30 

        Michael W. Welch, Mayor 31 
ATTEST: 32 
 33 
 34 
________________________________ 35 
Aaron Rhoades, Acting North Pole City Clerk 36 
 37 
 38 PASSED/FAILED 

Yes:  
No:  
Absent:  
 



Sponsored by: Councilman McGhee 
Co-Sponsor: Councilman Walley 

Introduced: August 3, 2020 
 

 

   1 
 2 

CITY OF NORTH POLE 3 
ORDINANCE 20-17 4 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF NORTH POLE, ALASKA 5 
AMENDING TITLE 2, CHAPTER 2.36 PERSONNEL CODE, SECTION. 6 

470 PAY 7 
 8 
WHEREAS, changes to the North Pole Municipal Code is a continually changing requirement; 9 
and  10 
 11 
WHEREAS, the City of North Pole Municipal Code should be amended to conform to the 12 
requirements of the City and to clarify areas and 13 
 14 
WHEREAS, the current pay scale in Chapter 2.36 Personnel Code Section 470 Pay will be 15 
amended to make the current Range 6 the new Range 1 and, 16 
 17 
WHEREAS, any current employee who is below the new Range 1 will be elevated to at least the 18 
new Range 1 and, 19 
 20 
WHEREAS, all current employees will elevate one step to fix past COLA shortfalls, 21 
 22 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of North Pole:  23 
 24 
Section 1. This ordinance is of a general and permanent nature and shall be codified.  25 
 26 
Section 2. Amend Title 2, Personnel Code, Pay is hereby amended in the North Pole Code of 27 
Ordinances as follows:  28 
 29 
 2. 36.470 Pay.  30 

See attached revised Unified Pay Scale. 31 
 32 
Section 3. Effective Date. This ordinance shall become effective at 5:00pm on the first city day 33 
of the pay period following adoption.  34 
 35 
Advanced by a duly constituted quorum of the North Pole City Council this 3rd day of August, 36 
2020.  37 
 38 
        _____________________________ 39 

        Michael W. Welch, Mayor 40 
ATTEST: 41 
 42 
 43 
________________________________ 44 
Aaron Rhoades, Acting North Pole City Clerk 45 
 46 
 47 PASSED/FAILED 

Yes:  
No:  
Absent:  
 



7/27/20 Proposed Range Move to Range 6
3% annually

Position Range 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20
Mayor 5750 5750 5750 5750 5750 5750 5750 5750 5750 5750 5750 5750 5750 5750 5750 5750 5750 5750 5750 5750

Police Chief 5284 5443 5606 5774 5947 6126 6309 6499 6694 6894 7101 7314 7534 7760 7993 8232 8479 8734 8996 9266

Fire Chief 5284 5443 5606 5774 5947 6126 6309 6499 6694 6894 7101 7314 7534 7760 7993 8232 8479 8734 8996 9266

City Clerk/HR 5284 5443 5606 5774 5947 6126 6309 6499 6694 6894 7101 7314 7534 7760 7993 8232 8479 8734 8996 9266

City Acct 5284 5443 5606 5774 5947 6126 6309 6499 6694 6894 7101 7314 7534 7760 7993 8232 8479 8734 8996 9266

Director of 
City Svs 5284 5443 5606 5774 5947 6126 6309 6499 6694 6894 7101 7314 7534 7760 7993 8232 8479 8734 8996 9266

30.49 31.40 32.35 33.32 34.32 35.35 36.41 37.50 38.62 39.78 40.98 42.21 43.47 44.78 46.12 47.50 48.93 50.40 51.91 53.46

Police Lt. 4753 4896 5042 5194 5350 5510 5675 5846 6021 6202 6388 6579 6777 6980 7189 7405 7627 7856 8092 8334

Dep Fire Chief 4753 4896 5042 5194 5350 5510 5675 5846 6021 6202 6388 6579 6777 6980 7189 7405 7627 7856 8092 8334

27.42 28.24 29.09 29.96 30.86 31.79 32.74 33.72 34.73 35.78 36.85 37.96 39.09 40.27 41.48 42.72 44.00 45.32 46.68 48.08

Deputy 
Accountant 4753 4896 5042 5194 5350 5510 5675 5846 6021 6202 6388 6579 6777 6980 7189 7405 7627 7856 8092 8334

Records 
Mgr/Archivist 3622 3731 3843 3958 4077 4199 4325 4455 4588 4726 4868 5014 5164 5319 5479 5643 5812 5987 6166 6351

AR, AP, Utility 
Billing Clerk 3622 3731 3843 3958 4077 4199 4325 4455 4588 4726 4868 5014 5164 5319 5479 5643 5812 5987 6166 6351

Admin Asst 
Evidence 
Cust/Dispr

3622 3731 3843 3958 4077 4199 4325 4455 4588 4726 4868 5014 5164 5319 5479 5643 5812 5987 6166 6351

20.89 21.52 22.16 22.83 23.51 24.22 24.94 25.69 26.46 27.26 28.07 28.92 29.78 30.68 31.60 32.55 33.52 34.53 35.56 36.63

Public Works 
Supervisor 4753 4896 5042 5194 5350 5510 5675 5846 6021 6202 6388 6579 6777 6980 7189 7405 7627 7856 8092 8334

27.42 28.24 29.09 29.96 30.86 31.79 32.74 33.72 34.73 35.78 36.85 37.96 39.09 40.27 41.48 42.72 44.00 45.32 46.68 48.08

Public Works 
Assistant 4075 4197 4323 4453 4586 4724 4866 5012 5162 5317 5476 5641 5810 5984 6164 6349 6539 6735 6937 7146

23.50 24.21 24.93 25.68 26.45 27.24 28.06 28.90 29.77 30.66 31.58 32.53 33.51 34.51 35.55 36.61 37.71 38.84 40.01 41.21
Utility 
Supervisor 4753 4896 5042 5194 5350 5510 5675 5846 6021 6202 6388 6579 6777 6980 7189 7405 7627 7856 8092 8334

27.42 28.24 29.09 29.96 30.86 31.79 32.74 33.72 34.73 35.78 36.85 37.96 39.09 40.27 41.48 42.72 44.00 45.32 46.68 48.08
Utility 
Operator 4299 4428 4561 4698 4839 4984 5133 5287 5446 5609 5777 5951 6129 6313 6503 6698 6899 7106 7319 7538

24.80 25.54 26.31 27.10 27.91 28.75 29.61 30.50 31.42 32.36 33.33 34.33 35.36 36.42 37.51 38.64 39.80 40.99 42.22 43.49



7/27/20 Proposed Range Move to Range 6
3% annually

Utility 
Assistant 4075 4197 4323 4453 4586 4724 4866 5012 5162 5317 5476 5641 5810 5984 6164 6349 6539 6735 6937 7146

23.50 24.21 24.93 25.68 26.45 27.24 28.06 28.90 29.77 30.66 31.58 32.53 33.51 34.51 35.55 36.61 37.71 38.84 40.01 41.21
Police 
Sergeant 4726 4868 5014 5164 5319 5479 5643 5812 5987 6166 6351 6542 6738 6940 7148 7363 7584 7811 8046 8287

27.27 28.09 28.93 29.80 30.69 31.61 32.56 33.54 34.54 35.58 36.65 37.75 38.88 40.05 41.25 42.49 43.76 45.07 46.43 47.82
Police 
Detective 4573 4710 4851 4997 5147 5301 5460 5624 5793 5967 6146 6330 6520 6716 6917 7125 7338 7558 7785 8019

26.37 27.16 27.98 28.82 29.68 30.57 31.49 32.43 33.40 34.41 35.44 36.50 37.60 38.73 39.89 41.08 42.32 43.59 44.89 46.24

Police Officer 4449 4582 4720 4862 5007 5158 5312 5472 5636 5805 5979 6158 6343 6534 6730 6931 7139 7354 7574 7801

25.67 26.44 27.23 28.05 28.89 29.76 30.65 31.57 32.52 33.49 34.50 35.53 36.60 37.70 38.83 39.99 41.19 42.43 43.70 45.01

Police Officer 
Recruit

Wage at 
Academy 15

Fire Captain 4726 4868 5014 5164 5319 5479 5643 5812 5987 6166 6351 6542 6738 6940 7148 7363 7584 7811 8046 8287

20.52 21.14 21.77 22.42 23.10 23.79 24.50 25.24 25.99 26.77 27.58 28.40 29.26 30.13 31.04 31.97 32.93 33.92 34.93 35.98

Fire Lt. 4558 4695 4836 4981 5130 5284 5442 5606 5774 5947 6126 6309 6499 6694 6894 7101 7314 7534 7760 7992

19.79 20.38 21.00 21.63 22.27 22.94 23.63 24.34 25.07 25.82 26.60 27.39 28.22 29.06 29.93 30.83 31.76 32.71 33.69 34.70

Fire Engineer 4449 4582 4720 4862 5007 5158 5312 5472 5636 5805 5979 6158 6343 6534 6730 6931 7139 7354 7574 7801

19.31 19.89 20.49 21.10 21.73 22.39 23.06 23.75 24.46 25.20 25.95 26.73 27.53 28.36 29.21 30.08 30.99 31.92 32.87 33.86

Firefighter 3880 3996 4116 4240 4367 4498 4633 4772 4915 5063 5214 5371 5532 5698 5869 6045 6226 6413 6605 6804

16.84 17.35 17.87 18.40 18.95 19.52 20.11 20.71 21.33 21.97 22.63 23.31 24.01 24.73 25.47 26.24 27.02 27.83 28.67 29.53

Overhire 16.84 17.35 17.87 18.40 18.95 19.52 20.11 20.71 21.33 21.97 22.63 23.31 24.01 24.73 25.47 26.24 27.02 27.83 28.67 29.53



Sponsored by: Councilman Mayor Welch 
Introduced & Advanced: August 3, 2020 

 

 

 1 
ORDINANCE NO. 20-18 2 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF NORTH POLE, ALASKA TO 3 
AMEND 2020 OPERATING BUDGET AND OTHER FUNDS 4 

 5 
 6 
WHEREAS, changes to the public services practices and policies is a continually 7 
changing requirement; and, 8 
 9 
WHEREAS, the City of North Pole budget should be amended to conform to the 10 
requirements of the City; and, 11 
 12 
WHEREAS, adjustment in the budget are necessary to remain compliant with council 13 
approved authorizations and budget management rules, and, 14 
 15 
WHEREAS, fiscal notes are the method prescribed by the code to amend a budget; and, 16 
 17 
WHEREAS, fiscal notes have been reviewed by the Accountant and Mayor for 18 
accuracy and recorded as amendments to the budget upon approval to move 19 
$10,459.00 from Police Department Wages to Police Department Equipment Outlay. 20 
 21 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of North 22 
Pole that approves changes as listed in the fiscal note to be attached to this ordinance 23 
for the purpose managing the City budget. 24 
 25 
Section 1. This ordinance is of a general nature and shall not be codified. 26 
 27 
Section 2. Effective date. 28 
This ordinance shall become effective immediately upon passage. 29 
 30 
Advanced by a duly constituted quorum of the North Pole City Council this 3rd day 31 
of August 2020. 32 

 33 
 34 
        _____________________________ 35 

        Michael W. Welch, Mayor 36 
ATTEST: 37 
 38 
 39 
________________________________ 40 
Aaron Rhoades, Acting North Pole City Clerk 41 
 42 
 43 PASSED/FAILED 

Yes:  
No:  
Absent:  
 



North Pole Police Department 
Chief Steve Dutra 

January 9, 2020 

To: Honorable Mayor Welch 
North Pole Council Members 

125 Snowman Ln. 
North Pole, AK 99705 

907-488-6902 
Northpolepolice.org 

Re: Council approval Long Building Technologies bid for cameras 
Amount of $45,459.00 

I would like the council to approve the bid submitted by Long Building Technologies for our 
20SHSP-GY18 DHS Grant to install cameras in the police department and city hall. This bid is 
part of the State of Alaska Shared Services contract #180000199B and is an authorized 
procurement method for the City of North Pole to utilize. 

This procurement method exceeds the standards established under NPMC 4.16.030. Once we 
complete the EHP we will proceed with this project. The overall grant from SHSP-2018 is 
$35,000. The overall cost to complete this project is $45,459.00. We will offset the difference 
with either excess budget funds or use asset forfeiture funds to cover the police department costs. 

Once this project is complete we will have cameras in and around City Hall and the Police 
Department. 

Thank you for your time. 



City of North Pole 

125 Snowman Lane 
North Pole, AK 99705 

Attn: Steve Dutra 

L NG. 
Long live your building! 

Date: December 30, 2019 

Proposal#: APP19-00718R1 

Expiration: 30 days from above date 
Account Executive: Pauline Powell 

Contact Number: (907) 550-2125 

Project: CCTV System Installation - City of North Pole City Hall and Police Station 
SHARED SERVICES STA TE CONTRACT# 1800001998 

Thank you for the opportunity to submit a quote for the requested work at the City of North Pole City Hall and 
Police Station. LONG Building Technologies, Inc. ("LONG") is committed to being the industry leader in 

providing a single resource for your security solutions. 

Our security system design is based upon providing the right hardware and technology to accommodate your 
needs today and into the future. LONG will provide to you the infonnation required to make an educated 

investment decision. 

We are pleased to offer this detailed Scope of Work for your project. 

A. SCOPE OF WORK - SECURITY 

1) Provide all necessary installation, setup and programming required to provide a turn-key, CCTV 
system in the City of North Pole Police Department and City Hall. This system, as part of the project, 
shall be migrated into the current City of Fairbanks Milestone System. 

2) Police Department 
i) Provide and install one (1) Video Server, Intel Xeon Processor, 16GB RAM, min 12TB for video 

storage. This server shall be installed to the Police Department comm rack and will meet outlined 
server specifications. 

ii) Provide and install one (1) TPE-TG160g 16-port, PoE+, unmanaged, rack-mounted, switch. This 
switch will be installed to the comm rack. 

iii) Provide and install one (1 ) APC BR-1500G 1500VA UPS to the comm rack. The Video Server 
and PoE+ Switch shall be plugged into this UPS. 

iv) Provide and install one (1) Milestone XProtect Expert Base License, no substitutes, to the Video 
Server. 

v) Provide and install twelve (12) Milestone XProtect Expert Device Licenses with 3-Yr SUP licenses 
to the Video Server. No substitutes. 

vi) Provide and install four (4) OE-C6123 indoor IP cameras for camera locations 10, 11, 13, and 15 
per the Map. 

vii) Provide and install three (3) OE-C7624-AWR IP cameras, with short-arm pendant wall mounts 
and adapters, for camera locations 6, 7, and 8 per the Map. 

viii) Provide and install one (1 ) OE-C7088-AWR 4K IP camera, with short-arm pendant wall mounts 
and adapters, for camera location 9 per the Map. 

ix) Provide and install two (2) OE-C97512 360°, 12MP, IP cameras, with short arm wall mounts and 
corner brackets, to camera locations 16 and 17 per the Map. 

x) Provide and install all CAT6 cabling and conduit. Exposed-area runs shall be in conduit. 
Penetrations will follow current Life-Safety and NEC guidelines. Cabling will be Plenum-rated. 

xi) Provide and install one (1) 32" monitor with Workstation to the Dispatch. This workstation will 
have Milestone XProtect Client installed. Workstation shall meet outlined specifications. 

LONG Building Technologies, Inc. 

Alaska Business License: 1017730 

1853 Standard Ave. Fairbanks. AK 99701 907 .457.3044 TEL 907.457.1620 FAX 

Page 1 of 6 



3) City Hall 
i) Provide and install one (1) TPE-TG160g 16-port, PoE+, unmanaged, rack-mounted, switch. This 

switch will be installed to the comm rack in City Hall and adjoined directly to the Police 
Department CCTV switch. 

ii) Provide and install one (1) APC BR-1500G 1500VA UPS to the comm rack. The PoE+ switch 
shall be plugged into this UPS. 

iii) Provide and install five (5) Milestone XProtect Expert Device Licenses with 3-Yr SUP licenses to 
the Video Server in the Police Station. No substitutes. 

iv) Provide and install four (4) OE-C6123 indoor IP cameras for camera locations 1, 2, 3 and 4 per 
the Map. 

v) Provide and install one (1) PNM-9030V 180°1P camera, with short-arm pendant wall mounts and 
adapters, for camera location 5 per the Map. 

vi) Provide and install all CAT6 cabling and conduit. Exposed-area runs shall be in conduit, with the 
Council Chambers being the exception; cable will be hidden in the architectural features of the 
room . Penetrations will follow current Life-Safety and NEC guidelines. Cabling will be Plenum
rated . 

4) Program the City of North Pole system as a Slave system to the City of Fairbanks Milestone system 
and create views for the CoF Police Dispatch. 
i) City of North Pole must provide a signed MOA from the City of Fairbanks for this to be completed. 

5) Provide Engineered As-Built Drawings. 
6) Provide Lift for high elevation installation/work. 
7) Provide all necessary miscellaneous materials, connectors and freight. 
8) Provide all necessary commissioning and training . 
9) Current Milestone MCIT and MCDE Certifications for participating technicians will be submitted. 
10) One-year warranty on all supplied materials and workmanship. 
11) Pricing does not include tax. 
12) Owner will provide IT support for City of North Pole network-related items. 

8. PRfCE OF WORK (BUDGET ARY NUMBERS ONLY) 

1. Police Station CCTV Base..... .... . ........ . ..... ............. ... ..................... ..... ... . ............. $27,768.00 
2. CityHallCCTVBase .... ............ .. ............... . ........ ....... .. .. .. ..... .. .. .......... .... ... . ..... ..... $7,771 .00 
3. Video Server....................... ... ... .......... .. ......................... .... . .................. .. . $7,316.00 
4. PD Workstation .. . . . . . . . . .. .. ................................... ....... ................ ... ....... ... .. $2,604.00 
5. TOT Al ................ ..... .... ... ... ..... ................... ... ... ....... .. ...................................... $45,459.00 

C. MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT: 

1. Let's discuss maximizing the performance and lifetime of your system. 

D. INCLUSIONS: 

1. LONG will provide all labor for this project during normal business hours. If overtime work is required, 
an additional proposal will be provided for that work. 

2. LONG will coordinate work with Customer to minimize disruption. 
3. LONG will start site work in 4-6 weeks to allow for product and engineered drawings delivery. 

Additional charges will apply for site work starting sooner than 4 weeks from date of 
signature. 

4. LONG will provide and install all necessary components listed in Inclusions for a complete and 
operable system. 

LONG Building Technologies, Inc. 

Alaska Business License : 1017730 

1853 Standard Ave, Fairbanks. AK 99701 907.457 3044 TEL 907.457 1620 FAX 

Page 2 of 6 



5. Should deficient components be identified during the course of this scope of work, those items will be 
reported to Customer and a separate proposal for their repair/replacement will be provided upon 
request. 

6. LONG will provide all necessary wire and cabling. (NOTE): Existing raceways will be utilized 
wherever possible. 

E. EXCLUSIONS: 

1. A 120VAC power source input - hard-wired, non-receptacle - for the power supplies is not included 
in this scope of work. 

2. Customer is responsible for all user programming. 
3. All warranty for owner supplied or existing materials and workmanship. 
4. All costs of bonds and permits 
5. Code Upgrades 
6. Demolition of any kind. 
7. Power wiring or electrical panel modifications beyond what is included in this scope of work. 
8. Hazardous material identification, abatement or removal. 
9. Any/all general contractor related work, such as framing , painting, patching, man bars, roofing, 

architectural sheet metal, etc. 
10. All trash removal from site. 
11. All taxes and assessments related to th is project. 
12. Builders Risk Insurance. 

181 Cutting, patching, painting of finishes 181 Core drilling, saw cutting 181 Trenching, tunneling 
181 Hazardous materials handling 181 Provision of access doors 181Demolition 
181 Bid bond 181 Payment bond 181 Performance bond ~ Work outside normal business hours 

F. PAYMENT OPTIONS: 

1. D Upon receipt of a signed Contract, a fifty percent (50%) down payment of the Contract amount is 
due and the final payment is due upon completion . 

2. ~ Upon receipt of a signed Contract and a signed Credit Application , LONG may choose to extend 
credit and send monthly progress billings - net 30, with a 1.5% per month service charge on past due 
invoices. 

RESPONSIBILITY 
MATRIX 

LONG Owner Electrical 
LONG 

Subcontractor 
Furnish Install 

IP Cameras 
Camera License 
Camera License 
Sup Roi'!_ Plan 
Milestone Base 
License 

, Video Server 
Cable/Conduit 
Workstations ----- -
IP Addresses 
Commissioning 
120VAC power 

Furnish 
X 

X 

X 

X 

-+-
? 
X 

? 

LONG Building Technologies, Inc. 

Alaska Business License 1017730 

Install Furnish Install Furnish Install 
X 

X 

X 

X 

X ? 
X 
') 

1853 Standard Ave Fairbanks, AK 99701 907 457.3044 TEL 

Other 

Furnish Install 

907.457.1620 FAX 

Page 3 of 6 



Accepted for: Submitted by: LONG 
w 
N Accepted by: Submitted by: Pauline Powell 
ii: 
0 Title: Title: Security Account Executive :I: 
t-

Signature: Signature: :Pa,Jine /( :Powell ::::> 
< 

Date: Date: December 30, 2019 

Notwithstanding, any inconsistent or additional terms that may be embodied in your purchase order/contract. LONG will 
accept your order subject only to the terms of the written contract between us under which your order is placed. If no 
such contract exists, LONG will accept your order only on the express written condition that you assent to the terms and 
conditions contained above and, on the pages, attached hereto; and acceptance and receipt of the goods shipped 
hereunder shall constitute assent to such terms and conditions. 

Note: All data and information contained herein and provided by LONG Building Technologies is considered confidential and 
proprietary. The data and information contained herein may not be reproduced, published or distributed to, or for, any third 
parties without the express prior written consent of LONG Building Technologies. 

LONG Building Technologies, Inc. 

Alaska Business License· 1017730 

1853 Standard Ave, Fairbanks, AK 99701 907 457.3044 TEL 907 457.1620 FAX 

Page 4 of 6 



Terms and Conditions: 

By accepting this proposal , Purchaser agrees to be bound by the following Terms and Conditions: 

1. Scope of Work. Unless otherwise noted, this proposal is based upon the use of straight time labor only. Plastering, 
patching and painting are excluded. Purchaser agrees to provide LONG Building Technologies, Inc. ("LONG") with 
required field utilities (electricity, toilets, drinking water, project hoist, elevator service, etc.) without charge. LONG agrees 
to keep the Job site clean of debris arising out of its own operations. Purchaser shall not back charge LONG for any costs 
or expenses without LONG's written consent. 

2. Invoicing & Payments. LONG may invoice Purchaser monthly for all materials delivered to the job site or to an off-site 
storage facility and for all work performed on-site and off-site. Purchaser shall pay LONG in United States currency (USD) 
amounts invoiced within thirty (30) days of the invoice date. Waivers of lien will be furnished upon request, as the work 
progresses, and to the extent payments are received . Invoices more than 30 days from the invoice date shall be subject 
to finance charges at 1.5% per month or the maximum rate applicable for the State in which the work was performed. 

3. Material Shortages. If the materials or equipment included in this proposal become temporarily unavailable, the deadline 
for the performance of the work shall be extended by the length of the temporary unavailability. If the materials or 
equipment become permanently unavailable, LONG shall (a) be excused from furnishing the unavailable materials or 
equipment, and (b) be reimbursed for the price difference between the unavailable materials or equipment and a 
reasonably available substitute. 

4. Taxes. The price of this proposal does not include duties, sales, use, excise, or other taxes, unless required by federal , 
state or local law. Purchaser shall pay, in addition to the proposed price, all taxes not legally required to be paid by LONG 
or, alternatively, shall provide LONG with acceptable tax exemption certificates. LONG shall provide Purchaser with tax 
payment certificates upon request and after completion and acceptance of work. 

5. Delays. LONG shall not be liable for any delay in the performance of the work resulting from or attributed to acts or 
circumstances beyond LONG's control . including, but not limited to, acts of God, fire, riots, labor disputes, condition of the 
premises, acts or omissions of the Purchaser, Owner, or other Contractors or delays caused by suppliers or 
subcontractors of LONG. 

6. Compliance with Laws . LONG shall comply with all applicable federal , state and local laws and regulations and shall 
obtain all temporary licenses and permits required for the execution of the work. Licenses and permits of a permanent 
nature shall be procured and paid for by the Purchaser. 

7. Disputes. All disputes involving more than $15,000 shall be resolved by arbitration in accordance with the rules of the 
American Arbitration Association. The prevailing party shall recover all reasonable legal costs and attorney's fees incurred 
as a result. Nothing here shall limit any rights under construction lien laws. 

8. Insurance. Insurance coverage in excess of LONG's standard limits may be furnished if required ; however, Purchaser 
will be billed for any additional premium charged to LONG. LONG will neither give Purchaser credit for insurance afforded 
to it by others , nor pay other insurance premiums. 

9. Indemnity. The Parties hereto agree to indemnify each other from any and all liabilities, claims, expenses, losses or 
damages, including attorneys' fees, which may arise in connection with the execution of the work herein specified and 
which are caused, in whole or in part, by the negligent act or omission of the Indemnifying Party. 

10. Occupational Safety and Health. The Parties hereto agree to notify each other in writing immediately upon becoming 
aware of an inspection under, or any alleged violation of, the Occupational Safety and Health Act relating in any way to 
the project site. 

11 . Entire Agreement. This proposal, upon acceptance, shall constitute the entire agreement between the parties and 
supersedes any prior representations or understandings, written or oral. 

12. Changes. No change or modification of any of the terms and conditions stated herein shall be binding upon LONG unless 
accepted by LONG in writing. 

LONG Building Technologies, Inc. 

Alaska Business License : 1017730 

1853 Standard Ave. Fairbanks. AK 99701 907 457.3044 TEL 907.457.1620 FAX 

Page 5 of 6 



13. Limitations of Liability. Neither party's (including additional insured's) total cumulative liability hereunder for any claim 
or cause of action of any kind , regardless of whether such claim may be based on contract, warranty, tort (including 
negligence), strict liability , or any other legal or equitable principle, shall exceed the amount of the party's primary general 
liabil ity policy limits. Notwithstanding any provision of any contract document to the contrary, neither party shall waive 
subrogation, or be liable to the other party or any of its affiliates, employees or subcontractors for punitive, special, 
exemplary, incidental or consequential damages, damages for loss of profits , Joss of use or loss of revenue, or losses 
associated with cost of capital in connection with or arising out of this agreement, regardless of whether such claim may 
be based on contract, warranty, tort (including negligence), strict liability, or any other legal or equitable principle, or for 
any condition that is beyond the reasonable control, and without the intentional misconduct or negligence, of that party. 
Such conditions include, but are not limited to: acts of God; acts of government entities; strikes; labor disputes; fire; 
explosions or other casualties; thefts ; vandalism; riots or war; acts of terrorism; or unavailability of labor, parts, materials 
or supplies. 

14. Warranty. LONG warrants that the materials and equipment furnished by LONG will be of good quality and new; that the 
work will be free from defects not inherent in the quality required or permitted; and that the work will conform to the 
requirements of this agreement. LONG warrants that the work shall be free from defects in material and workmanship 
arising from normal usage for a period of one (1) year from the final invoice date and that its services will be free from 
defects in workmanship, design and material for one (1) year from the final invoice date. Upon written notice from the 
Purchaser, LONG shall, at its option, repair or replace the defective work or re-perform defective services. These 
warranties shall not extend to any work or services that have been abused , altered, misused or repaired by the Purchaser 
or th ird parties without the supervision of and prior written approval of LONG, or if LONG's serial numbers or warranty 
date decals have been removed or altered . The Purchaser must promptly report any failure of the equipment to LONG in 
writing. All replaced equipment becomes LONG's property. 

15. Asbestos-Containing Materials. LONG is not licensed, nor will it undertake direct obligations relating to the identification, 
abatement, cleanup, control , removal, and/or disposal of asbestos-containing materials ("ACM"). Consistent with 
applicable laws, Purchaser shall supply LONG with any information in its possession relating to the presence of ACM at 
any of its facilities where LONG may perform work or provide services that may result in the disturbance of ACM. Often, 
LONG asks for certification that no ACM is present in facilities constructed prior to 1982. Purchaser shall provide such 
certification for buildings it owns, or aid LONG in obtaining such certification from facility owners for buildings it does not 
own. If either Purchaser or LONG becomes aware of or suspects the presence of ACM that may be disturbed by LONG 
performing work or providing services, it shall immediately stop the work or services in the identified area(s) and 
immediately notify the other party in writing. The Purchaser shall be responsible at its sole expense for addressing the 
potential for or the presence of ACM in conformance with all applicable laws, and prior to LONG resuming work or 
providing services in the identified area(s), will provide a written certification to LONG that the identified area(s) are free 
from ACM. 

16. Other Hazards. Purchaser shall supply LONG with any information in its possession relating to the presence of Other 
Hazards, including but not limited to Structural Hazards, Hazardous Materials, Environmental Hazards, and Dangerous 
Substances in or near areas where LONG will be required to perform work or provide services. If either Purchaser or 
LONG becomes aware of or suspects the presence of Other Hazards that may interfere with LONG performing work or 
providing services , it shall immediately stop the work or services in the identified area(s) and immediately notify the other 
party in writing . Purchaser shall be responsible at its sole expense for the identification, abatement, cleanup, control , 
removal, and/or disposal of Other Hazards from areas LONG is required to perform work or provide services, and prior to 
LONG resuming work or providing services in the identified area(s), will provide a written certification to LONG that the 
identified area(s) are free from Other Hazards. LONG's obligations under this agreement expressly exclude any work or 
service of any nature associated or connected with the identification , abatement, clean up, control, removal , or disposal 
of Other Hazards including but not limited to asbestos, toxic waste. molds, lead, heavy metals, pesticides, pathogens, 
radon , x-rays or polychlorinated biphenyls ("PCBs"), discovered in or near areas where LONG will be required to perform 
work or provide services . Any language or provision of the agreement contained elsewhere that may authorize or 
empower the Purchaser to change, modify, or alter the Scope of Work to be performed by LONG shall not operate to 
compel LONG to perform any work relating to Asbestos-Containing Materials or Other Hazards. 

LONG Building Technologies, Inc. 

Alaska Business license· 1017730 

1853 Standard Ave, Fairbanks. AK 99701 907 457.3044 TEL 907 457 1620 FAX 

Page 6 of 6 



      City of North Pole, Alaska 

 Fiscal Note Year: 

Accompanying Ordinance/Resolution: 

Originator / sponsor: 

Date:      

Does the Ordinance or Resolution have a fiscal impact? yes no 

FUND Account Description Account # Debit Credit 

Summary: (Brief description of proposed alterations as defined by accompanying 
ordinance or resolution.  Where did the money come from and how will it be used). 

Prepared By:________________________________Date:__________________ 

Finance Approval: ___________________________Date:__________________ 

NOTE- Fiscal notes attached to an ordinance are considered amendments to the budget and do 
not require an additional approval for insertion into the budget document.  

bbutler
Line

bbutler
Line

bbutler
Line

bbutler
Line

bbutler
Line

bbutler
Line

bbutler
Line



Sponsored by: Councilman Mayor Welch 
Introduced & Advanced: August 3, 2020 

 

 

 1 
ORDINANCE NO. 20-19 2 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF NORTH POLE, ALASKA TO 3 
APPROPRIATE CARES ACT FUNDS FOR DISTRIBUTION  4 

 5 
 6 

WHEREAS, the City of North Pole has been notified by the State of Alaska, Department of Commerce, 7 
Community, and Economic Development, Division of Community and Regional Affairs, that the City of 8 
North Pole has been allocated Coronavirus Relief Funds through the Federal CARES Act; and 9 
 10 
WHEREAS, the City of North Pole has been allocated Coronavirus Relief Funds in the amount of 11 
$4,063,980.00 for necessary expenditures incurred due to the public health emergency with respect to the 12 
Coronavirus Disease 2019 (COVID – 19); and 13 
 14 
WHEREAS, the City of North Pole plans to recover allowable expenditures and to provide funds to local 15 
businesses and individuals within the City through partnerships with local financial institutions and 16 
organizations.  17 
 18 
WHEREAS, The City of North Pole will partner with the Fairbanks North Star Borough CARES Act 19 
Program with the guidance of the North Pole Cares Act Committee’s actions approved by the North Pole 20 
City Council.  21 
 22 
WHEREAS, The North Pole Cares Act Committee has proposed that $500,000 dollars should be set aside 23 
for Foundation Health Partners for a Health Integration Grant; 24 
 25 
WHEREAS, they further propose $2,250,000 be distributed to the Business Interruption Grant per the 26 
guidelines of the FNSB. 27 
 28 
FURTHERMORE, they propose $750,000 for Individuals and Families in the amount of up to $10,000 29 
each.  30 
 31 
FINALLY, that the remainder of the funds be spent on behalf of The City of North Pole for all of its 32 
Departments. 33 

 34 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of North Pole that 35 
approves these Appropriations for the distribution of CARES Act Funds. 36 

 37 
Section 1. This ordinance is of a general nature and shall be codified. 38 
 39 
Section 2. Effective date. 40 
This ordinance shall become effective immediately upon passage. 41 
 42 
Advanced by a duly constituted quorum of the North Pole City Council this 3rd day 43 
of August 2020. 44 

 45 
 46 
        _____________________________ 47 

        Michael W. Welch, Mayor 48 
ATTEST: 49 



Sponsored by: Councilman Mayor Welch 
Introduced & Advanced: August 3, 2020 

 

 

 1 
 2 
________________________________ 3 
Aaron Rhoades, Acting North Pole City Clerk 4 
 5 
 6 PASSED/FAILED 

Yes:  
No:  
Absent:  
 


	AG 08-03-2020
	North Pole Council Chambers
	6. Communications from the Mayor
	10. Citizens Comments (Limited to five (5) minutes per Citizen)
	13. Council Comments


	Min 7-20-2020
	a. July 7, 2020 Met with Secretary of the USAF, Dr. Barbara Barrett with U.S. Senators Sullivan and Murkowski, and Lt. Gen Krumm.
	b. July 8, 2020 Change of Command at EAFB 354th LRS with outgoing Commander Lt. Col. Derick Williamson and incoming Commander Major Adam Starkey.
	c. July 14, 2020 Energy for Alaska Task Force Zoom meeting.
	d. July 15, 2020 Three Mayors Zoom Meeting
	e. July 15, 2020 Fast Planning Policy Meeting
	f. July 17, 2020 FNSB Mayor Bryce Ward Discussion about CARES Act MOU.
	g. July 17 KSH Met with Gary Hutcheson about Mayor’s response to recommendations to increase accounting staff. Will have response ready no later than July 22, 2020.
	h. July 18, 2020 Saturday KJNP Over the Coffee Cup Call-In 0810-0835
	i. July 18, 2020 Update on Status of City Hall Screens and Cares Act

	Ordinance 20-14 Amending 2019 Water Utility Operating Budget
	Ordinance Lead & Copper--fiscal note
	Lead & Copper fiscal note
	Shannon & WIlson agreement

	Ord 20-15 Amending Personnel Code Section 470 Pay
	Ord 20-16 Second Amendment Sanctuary
	An Ordinance of the City of North Pole, Alaska Amending Title 2 Chapter  36 Personnel Code, Section 470 Pay
	Ord 20-17 Amending Personnel Code Section 470 Pay V2 (002)
	Range 6 to 1 keep 3% 7 27 2020 V2 (004)
	Sheet1


	Ord 20-18 Repurpose of Funds
	Cameras for Police
	Fiscal Note for For Long Technologies
	Ord 20-19 CARES Act Ordinance

	Year: 2020
	Res-Ord: Ordnance 20-14
	Sponsor: Bill Butler
	Date: July 15, 2020
	Yes: Yes
	No: Off
	FUNDRow1: 51
	Account DescriptionRow1: Transfer out
	Account Row1: 51-10-9-999
	DebitRow1: $13,125.00
	CreditRow1: 
	FUNDRow2: 41
	Account DescriptionRow2: Transfer in
	Account Row2: 41-00-9-999
	DebitRow2: 
	CreditRow2: $13,125.00
	FUNDRow3: 41
	Account DescriptionRow3: Professional Services
	Account Row3: 41-10-2-235
	DebitRow3: $13,125.00
	CreditRow3: 
	FUNDRow4: 41
	Account DescriptionRow4: Transfer-Fund Balance
	Account Row4: 41-10-9-998
	DebitRow4: 
	CreditRow4: $13,125.00
	FUNDRow5: 
	Account DescriptionRow5: 
	Account Row5: 
	DebitRow5: 
	CreditRow5: 
	FUNDRow6: 
	Account DescriptionRow6: 
	Account Row6: 
	DebitRow6: 
	CreditRow6: 
	FUNDRow7: 
	Account DescriptionRow7: 
	Account Row7: 
	DebitRow7: 
	CreditRow7: 
	FUNDRow8: 
	Account DescriptionRow8: 
	Account Row8: 
	DebitRow8: 
	CreditRow8: 
	FUNDRow9: 
	Account DescriptionRow9: 
	Account Row9: 
	DebitRow9: 
	CreditRow9: 
	Text6: Transfer $13,125.00 from the North Pole Water System transition funds to Professional Service, Water Department for a contract with Shannon & Wilson to manage the collection of lead and copper data resulting from the North Pole Expansion Project.
	Prepared By: Bill Butler
	Date_2: 7/15/2020
	Finance Approval: Tricia Fogarty
	Date_3: 7/15/2020


